
Posted 8/6/21 amended 8/7/21 
 

TOWN OF LONG LAKE, WASHBURN COUNTY 
MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, August 10, 2021, at 6:00 p.m.. 
Town Hall 

N1584 County Highway MD, Sarona, WI 
 

 
AGENDA 

Call to Order by LeRoy Sandridge, Chairman 
Pledge of Allegiance, Verification of Notices, Roll Call 

 
1. Approval of Minutes from the July 13, 2021, Regular Board meeting. 

2. Financial Report. 

3. Public Input. 

4. Consider reopening to public uses of town hall. 

5. Consider Conditional Use Permit Request from Craig Soloman.  

6. Clean Up Days Report. 

7. Consider adding Town Clerk as a paid member of the Planning Commission.  

8. WTA Meeting update on Washburn County Emergency Management.  

9. Summer Prepay for Propane. 

10. Consider Fee Schedule for Open Records Request. 

11. Consider/Approved Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s Licenses for Hunt Hill. 

12. Discuss setting up online town workshop training from Spring WTA Workshops. 

13. Approval of Town Driveway & Highway Access Permit Ordinance #2021-1. 

14. Consider request for Holy Island Road survey.  

15. Consider Fireworks Permit for Taylor West. 

16. Consider Variance Application for Spring Waters Condominium.  

17. Road updates. 

18. Public input. 

19. Reports of Town Officers 

Debbie 

Brenda 

Greg 

Dan 

LeRoy 

20. Correspondence. 

21. Approve Vouchers for Payment. 

22. Adjournment. 
   



      TOWN OF LONG LAKE  
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

July 13, 2021                             Town Hall 
 
The regular monthly Town Board meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Supervisor, Dan 
Lubensky.  Also, Supervisor, Greg Tinker, Clerk, Debbie Bouma and Treasurer, Brenda 
Derousseau were present. Chairman LeRoy Sandridge was absent. Dan Lubensky asked the 
Clerk to Chair the meeting.  
 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES: Motion Lubensky and second Tinker to approve the minutes from 
the June 8, 2021, Regular Board Meeting. Motion carried. 
  
FINANCIAL REPORT:  Motion Tinker and second Lubensky to accept the Treasurer’s Financial 
Report as presented by the treasurer. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: Brain Halloran spoke on behalf of the Scout Camp stating that he on behalf of 
the scouts agree with LLPA on the water level.  Wayne Sabatke provided handouts to the board 
information from the joint committee from the three towns working on the water issues as an 
update.  The next meeting will be August 12, 2021 at 6 pm at the Madge town hall.  Barb 
Zielinkski spoke on how she would like the town hall open to the exercise class. 
  
CONSIDER REOPENING TO PUBLIC USE OF TOWN HALL:  Letter from Rural Mutual 
explained that the policy only covers town business events and elections. The board asked for 
the clerk to investigate the cost of an extra liability policy to open the town hall to public events. 
By consensus, this is tabled for future discussion.  
 
ARPA FUNDS UPDATE AND CONSIDER MOTION TO CREATE SPECIAL FUNDS AND 
INTEREST-BEARING ACCOUNT:  The town received the first ½ ARPA payment of $32,970.59.  
Motion Tinker and second Lubensky to create a special fund in an interest-bearing account for 
ARPA funds.   
 
DISCUSS SETTING UP ONLINE TOWN WORKSHOP TRAINING FROM SPRING WTA 
WORKSHOPS:  This will be tabled until August meeting. 
 
ROAD UPDATES:  Church Road Rip Rap will be completed in August by Washburn County 
Highway Department for the cost of $8020.87.  The culverts on Church Rd were inspected to 
insure both where still solid before beginning the road work.  Motion by Lubensky and second 
Tinker to accept the bid as presented from L&L Excavating for ditch work on the gravel portion 
of Church Rd for $17,890.55 to begin at the end of summer. Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC INPUT:  Virginia Sandridge informed the board that Leroy had gone to Holy Island to 
address the email that is the correspondence file and that he was working on it. 
 
REPORTS OF TOWN OFFICERS: 
Debbie: Facebook currently has 217 followers from the town. Save the date September 19, 
2021, for WTA workshop in Cable, WI.  Clean up Day reminder is August 7, 202, from 8 to 2.   
Brenda: none 
Dan: Boat Landing are doing well. 
Greg: none 
LeRoy: absent 
.  
CORRESPONDENCE: Correspondence was on the table for Board members to review and will 
be kept with the clerk’s meeting records. 



 
VOUCHERS: Motion Lubensky and second Tinker to pay vouchers #5554 to #5578 and EFT.  
Motion carried.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: On a motion Lubensky and second Tinker the meeting was adjourned at 7:03 
p.m. Motion carried. 
 
An audio recording of these minutes will be kept on file at the Town Hall or at the clerk’s home. 
 
Respectfully submitted by 
 
Debbie Bouma, Town Clerk 









Trial Balance

Municipality:

Fiscal Year:

Sorted By:

Selection: Month: 7

Town of Long Lake

Account Number

2021Active Accounts Only

2021Fiscal Year:

Report Date:

Report Time:

8/06/2021

1:46 PM

Page  1

Report  61

Account Group Description Type Month 7 DB Month 7 CR YTD Debits YTD Credits

11010 Checking Account (General Fund) 42,594.67 534,004.05BNK Asset

Asset 534,004.051Count: 42,594.67

42,594.67 534,004.05Totals:

Account Group Description Type Month 7 DB Month 7 CR YTD Debits YTD Credits

21511 -1.86Social Security Taxes Payable -333.54UNL Liability

21512 U.S. Withholding Taxes Payable 346.60UNL Liability

21514 -0.42Medicare Taxes Payable -103.28UNL Liability

24310 County Apportionment of Taxes 4,417.54UNL Liability

24330 Dog License Fees 44.00UNL Liability

-436.82Liability 4,808.145Count: -2.28

-2.28 4,371.32Totals:

Account Group Description Type Month 7 DB Month 7 CR YTD Debits YTD Credits

34300 Unreserved and Undesignated Fund Balance -426,097.60UNF Capital

-426,097.60Capital1Count:

-426,097.60Totals:

Account Group Description Type Month 7 DB Month 7 CR YTD Debits YTD Credits

41111 Town Prtn Property Taxes -118,330.62RAA Revenue

41113 Delinquent P.P. Retained -616.67RAC Revenue

41114 -4,926.04State Property Tax Cred IN & OUT -4,926.04RAE Revenue

41116 Lottery Tax Collection -2,509.40RAG Revenue

41150 Forest Cropland/Managed Forest Land Taxes -24,283.79RAU Revenue

43410 -32,970.59State Shared Revenues -32,970.59RGN Revenue

43430 Other State Shared Taxes -28.65RGT Revenue

43531 -24,387.84State Grant-Locl Trns Ai -73,163.52RHW Revenue

43620 In Lieu of Taxes on State Conservation Lands -59.04RJG Revenue

43650 Forest Cropland/Managed Forest Land -979.50RJR Revenue

44110 Liquor and Malt Beverage License -2,238.50RLD Revenue

44111 -160.00Operator Licenses -360.00RLG Revenue

44900 -718.07Other Regulatory Permits and Fees -1,699.82RMU Revenue

44900-04 -40.00Boat Launch Annual permits -390.00RMU Revenue

46310 Highway Maintenance and Construction -2.00RPW Revenue

48110 -19.86Interest Income -566.47SBW Revenue

48900 Other Misc.Revenues -338.91SEH Revenue

-263,463.52Revenue17Count: -63,222.40

-63,222.40 -263,463.52Totals:

Account Group Description Type Month 7 DB Month 7 CR YTD Debits YTD Credits

51110 Board Salaries/FICA 1,381.02 9,344.14DAE Expense



Trial Balance

Municipality:

Fiscal Year:

Sorted By:

Selection: Month: 7

Town of Long Lake

Account Number

2021Active Accounts Only

2021Fiscal Year:

Report Date:

Report Time:

8/06/2021

1:46 PM

Page  2

Report  61

51110-02 Board Expenses 297.62 1,224.20DAG Expense

51300 Legal 180.00 450.00DAM Expense

51400 General Administration 541.95DAR Expense

51400-01 legal ads 75.95 965.81DAS Expense

51420 Clerk 1,223.52 8,457.00DAW Expense

51420-02 Clerk Expenses 343.69 1,282.85DAZ Expense

51420-04 Auditor 1,000.00DBE Expense

51420-05 Computer Exp. & ETC. 95.81 943.96DBG Expense

51430 Personnel 107.64 2,082.69DBK Expense

51440 Election Wages 1,515.07DBO Expense

51440-02 Election Expenses 546.45DBR Expense

51520 Treasurer 598.99 4,085.29DCL Expense

51520-02 Treasurer Expenses 90.32 1,151.78DCO Expense

51530 Assessment of Property 658.33 4,608.35DCS Expense

51610 Town Hall Maintenance 112.00 1,786.00DDO Expense

51610-02 Town Hall Expenses 60.00DDO Expense

51610-10 Town Hall Utilities 148.38 1,422.86DDO Expense

51610-20 Town Hall Improvements 48.49DDO Expense

51910 Illegal Taxes, Tax Refunds, Uncollectible Taxes, Special Assessments Receivables -78.00DDW Expense

51938 Other Insurance 3.00 4,076.00DEN Expense

52200 Fire Protection 46,063.30DFK Expense

53311-01 sanding/snow removal 21,320.00DJA Expense

53311-02 grading 2,102.50 7,035.00DJA Expense

53311-03 Brush/mow/tree maint 6,442.50 8,127.50DJA Expense

53311-04 Contracted Services 196.35DJA Expense

53311-05 Chip/Crackseal/Patch 1,332.76DJA Expense

53311-06 Ditch repair 5,330.45 5,330.45DJA Expense

53311-07 signs 240.00DJA Expense

53311-08 culverts 820.52 5,194.28DJA Expense

53311-09 Salt/Sand 6,372.99DJA Expense

53311-90 Misc. Maintance 150.00DJA Expense

53635 Recycling 360.00 2,885.60DOI Expense

55400 Recreation Facilities 239.80 506.95DSA Expense

55400-10 Boat Landings maint 17.97 915.68DSA Expense

-78.00Expense 151,263.7535Count: 20,630.01

20,630.01 151,185.75Totals:

Count: 59 -690,075.94690,075.94-63,224.6863,224.68Totals:Report 61 Totals:

Differences: 0.00

42,594.67 534,004.05

20,630.01 151,185.75

63,224.68 685,189.80

-2.28 4,371.32

-63,222.40 -263,463.52

-426,097.60

-63,224.68 -685,189.80

'1' Assets:

'5' Expenses:

Assets + Expenses:

'2' Liabilities:

'3' Capital:

'4' Revenues:

Liab + Cap + Rev:

Trial Balance Summary

Month 7 Totals Month 7 TotalsYTD Totals YTD Totals



Town of Long Lake, Washburn County, WI 
Ordinance #2021-1 

Town Driveway & Highway Access Permit Ordinance 
Repealing and Replacing Ordinance #2017-1 

 
SECTION 1 - TITLE PURPOSE 
 
The title of this ordinance is the Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit 
Ordinance. The purpose is to: 

•  Regulate the establishment, construction and reconstruction of all public and private 
driveways. 

•  Assure that these methods or practices used in any driveway will protect properly 
the public health, safety, and general welfare of persons in the town. 

 •  Protect and preserve the public's quality of life. 
 •  Lessen negative impacts on the environment. 

•  Limit and regulate highway access by vehicles to any town highway or county 
highway in the Town of Long Lake. All driveways must comply with this ordinance.  

• This is not a Town Zoning Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2- AUTHORITY 
 
The Town Board has the specific authority under s. 86.07, Wis. stats. to adopt a Town 
Driveway and Highway Access Permit Ordinance, and the general authority under its 
village powers under s. 60.22, Wis. stats., to adopt this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3 - ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 
 
The Town Board, by this ordinance, adopted on proper notice with a quorum and roll call 
vote by a majority of the Town Board present and voting, provides the authority for the 
town to regulate and permit all driveways and highway access locations in the town. 
 
SECTION 4 - DEFINITIONS 
 
A.  Prime agricultural land means any land within the town that is currently being farmed, 

including cropland and pasture land or land that is included in a government set-aside 
program. 

B.  Driveway means any private way, private road, easement road, or other avenue of 
private travel that runs through any part of a private parcel of land that connects or will 
connect with any public highway, and will provide service to a residence, business, 
recreational site, or other similarly appropriate uses. 

C.  Emergency vehicle means any fire, police. ambulance or first responder vehicles used 
in emergency or hazard activities in the town. 

D.  Impacted landowner means an owner of real estate that is provided vehicular access to 
a public highway by a driveway determined to be unsafe or nonconforming to the spirit 
of the town comprehensive plan. 

E.  Structure means any man made object with form, shape and utility, either permanently 
or temporarily attached to, placed upon or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed, 
which includes, but is not limited to, such objects as roofed or walled buildings, gas or 
liquid storage tanks, view obstructing non wire fences. 

F.   Town means the Town of Long Lake, Washburn County, Wisconsin. 



 2 

G.  Town Board means the board of supervisors for the Town of Long Lake, Washburn 
County, Wisconsin and includes designees of the board authorized to act for the 
board. 

H.  Town clerk means the clerk of the Town of Long Lake, Washburn County, Wisconsin. 
I.   Wis. Stats. means the Wisconsin Statutes, including successor provisions to cited 

statutes. 
J.   Drivable means unobstructed, open and capable of vehicle passage. 
 
SECTION 5 - COVERAGE 
 
Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit - No person shall: 

• Establish or construct a private or public driveway. 
• Reconstruct, reroute, or alter the existing slope of any private or public driveway or 

any town or other highway or highway right-of way. 
•  Establish or construct a driveway or reconstruct, reroute, or alter any highway 

access onto a town or county highway. 
in the Town of Long Lake without first obtaining a Town Driveway and Highway 
Access Permit to be issued by the Town Board or Designee. 

 
 
SECTION 6 - MINIMUM DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
A.  Access driveways and road spacing - Access driveways to highways from abutting 

properties shall comply with the following requirements: 
• A minimum of 100 feet spacing between access driveways; adjoining driveways 

permitted. Discretion is granted to the Town Board or Designee to permit driveways 
at a lesser spacing. 

B.  Vision triangle - At every driveway intersection there shall be a visual clearance triangle 
bounded by the driveway center point where it meets the road right-of-way and points 
connecting the road centerlines 75 feet down the centerline in each direction. Nothing 
shall block the vision triangle from a height of 2.5 feet to 15 feet above the ground. 
Open wire fences, telephone and power transmission poles, field and forest crops are 
accepted with permission of the Town Board or Designee. 

C.  Traveled road bed – Driveways serving one or two residences shall have a 20 foot 
wide corridor with a 12 foot wide all-weather surface consisting of a minimum of 4 
inches road gravel. Driveways serving three or more residences shall have a 24 foot 
wide corridor with a 16 foot wide all-weather surface consisting of a minimum of 4 
inches road gravel. 

 If the all-weather surface is asphalt or concrete, driveways serving one or two 
residences shall have a 12 foot wide road bed and driveways serving three or more 
residences shall have a16 foot wide road surface 

 All road beds shall be cleared to a height of 15 feet.  
D.  Driveway Right-of-Way shall be 2 rods in width (33 feet). 
E.  Turnarounds - Driveways shall have a minimum turnaround area as indicated in 

SECTION 9 - SPECIFICATIONS. 
F.  Exemptions from the provisions of this article, except item B above, would include: 
 • Those portions of both private roads and driveways which are restricted by an 

existing easement prior to 2005. 
G.  In addition to the above town standards, access to county highways must be 

approved by the Washburn County Highway Department prior to construction of a 
driveway connecting to a county highway. 



 3 

H.  Roads to be considered as future Town roads must be brought up to Chapter Trans 
204.03 standards of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, by the private landowners or 
developers. 

 
SECTION 7 - APPLICATION 
 
A. The Town Designee shall approve a form for application for the Town Driveway and 

Highway Access Permit, which shall be available from the town clerk or town 
designee and via download from the Town website at www.townoflonglake.us. 

B. The applicant for a Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit shall submit to the 
town designee a completed application with the appropriate fee and with the following 
attachments: 
1. Sketch Map. A rough sketch showing the conceptual idea of the project and 

approximate location and dimensions. The sketch map may be submitted to the 
Town Designee prior to the preparation or submission of the other supporting 
documents in order for the Town Designee to provide initial comments and review 
of the proposal. However, formal approval for a Town Driveway and Highway 
Access Permit will not be granted without the submission of complete supporting 
documents. 

2. Plat Map. A plat map and all related accompanying certified survey maps indicating 
the location and dimensions of the desired driveway and highway access locations, 
if any, as well as the parcels immediately adjacent to the applicant's property. The 
applicant may first submit only a sketch plat. Once the Town Designee has 
reviewed the sketch plat, the applicant may be asked to submit an additional 
preliminary plat or final plat, or both. 

3. Town Driveway and Highway Access plan (if required per this ordinance, see 
Section 8). 

4. Other Documents. The Town Designee may require other documents to be 
attached to the application, such as Aerial Photo/Site Analysis and Soil/Slope 
Analysis. 

C. Procedures for the evaluation of the Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit 
application by the Town Designee, including any required site inspection of the 
proposed driveway, public hearing, and Town Board meetings, are as follows: 
1. Submit all application and application materials to town designee with the 

appropriate fees. 
2. Field stake and mark the proposed job site construction areas, driveway centerline 

and right-of-way so as to prepare area for an on-site inspection by the town board 
or its designee.  

3. Appear before the Town of Long Lake Board for approval, if required. 
D. The Town Designee shall approve or deny any Town Driveway and Highway Access 

Permit application and may, as a condition of issuance, place specific restrictions or 
conditions on the permit, which shall require compliance by the applicant.  Reasons for 
denying a Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit application may include: 
1. Construction of a driveway prior to submitting an application to the Town Designee. 
2. The inconsistency or nonconformance of the proposed driveway or highway access 

with this ordinance, with the town comprehensive plan, master plan, or land use 
plan, with town laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or plans, or applicable county, 
state, or federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or plans. 

3. The driveway, bridge, culvert, or highway access, or any combination., when 
constructed, rerouted, reconstructed, or altered as proposed would be dangerous or 
unsafe for use by persons in the town. 



 4 

4. The application as filed and submitted is incomplete or contains false material as 
determined by the town board. 

5. Alternative driveway locations, bridges, culverts, and highway access locations will 
be safer for persons by motor vehicle ingress or egress on the driveway and access 
point. 

6. Alternative driveway locations or alternative highway access locations will preserve 
or better protect more prime or productive agricultural or forestry land in the town. 

7. Alternative driveway locations or alternative access highway locations will have less 
negative impact on environmentally sensitive parcels of land, waters, or nearby 
property owners in the Town, including land adjacent or near the proposed 
driveway. 

8. The driveway will not provide timely and adequate ingress and egress for 
emergency vehicles, sanitation vehicles, public service vehicles, public utility 
vehicles, or government vehicles. 

9. The driveway adds to an increasing traffic density problem on a road that would 
affect the safety and quality of life to neighboring landowners.  

E. In the event of a denial of a Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit 
application, the Town Board shall recite in writing the particular facts upon which it 
bases its denial of the permit. The Town Board shall also afford the applicant an 
opportunity to review the Town Board's decision and present evidence at a Town Board 
meeting to the Town Board refuting the determination. Thereafter, the Town Board may 
affirm or modify its decision. The Town Board shall recite in writing findings for any 
decision to modify or override its initial determination. 

F. If the Town Board denies two consecutive applications for a Town Driveway and 
Highway Access Permit on the same parcel, no subsequent re-application for a 
permit of the same type that was denied for that parcel will be considered within three 
months of the second denial. 

G. The Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit is effective for twelve months from 
the date of issuance. The permit shall expire after twelve months unless renewed. 

H. The permit may be renewed for an additional period of 6 months. If the driveway and 
highway access has not been constructed by the end of one 6-month renewal period, a 
new application must be submitted and approved. 

I. The applicant shall notify the Town clerk in writing or via email within 30 days of 
completion of the construction, reconstruction, rerouting, or alteration of the driveway 
and highway access. Within 30 days of notification, the Town Board or its designee will 
conduct an inspection of the driveway and highway access to ensure full compliance 
with all permit conditions and provisions of this ordinance. 

J. An application fee in an amount determined by a resolution of the Town Board will be 
charged for the permit. The nonrefundable permit fee shall be $50. 

K. The Town Board, or its designees, shall have the right of inspection onto land pursuant 
to a warrant issued under s. 66.0119, Wis. stats., for the purpose of inspecting existing 
or proposed driveways to determine if the driveways will allow for the safe and timely 
travel by emergency vehicles, government service vehicles, or vehicles of the general 
public. 

 
SECTION 8 - PLANS 
 
A.   The Town Board requires a Town Driveway and Highway Access plan prior to any 
proposed driveway and highway access construction, reconstruction, rerouting, or 
alteration. 
B.    A Town Driveway and Highway Access plan is required for any of the following: 



 5 

1. Construction of a driveway or segment of a driveway that requires the disturbance 
of land with a grade of more than 10%. 
2. A driveway or segment of a driveway that requires a retaining wall or other special 
erosion control measure as determined by the Town Designee. 
3.  A driveway that crosses a waterway or has the potential to significantly alter existing 
drainage patterns or quantity of runoff. 
4. When construction or modification of the driveway necessitates construction or 
improvement of a bridge or culvert. 

C. A Town Driveway and Highway Access plan will include a scale plan showing all of 
the following: 
1.  Location. The precise location of the driveway or the segment of the driveway for 

which the driveway construction plan is required.  
2.  Grade. A profile of the driveway route before and after construction showing a 

maximum finished driveway grade of 10%. 
       3. Retaining Walls. The location and structure of any retaining walls. 
       4. Bridges. The location, size, and design calculations of any bridges 
       5. Culverts. The location, size, and design calculations of any culverts. 
       6. Cross-section. Typical cross sections of the driveway. 
       7. Erosion Control. Required mulching, matting, or other erosion control. 
       8. Storm Water Management.  Drainage methods engineered for the particular surface 

type, including location and dimensions of ditches, proper grading technique, 
projected water handling capability, and water loads at the point of access to the 
public highway. 

9.  Other Access Points. The location of any other access points onto the town highway 
within one mile of proposed access point. 

D. No construction, reconstruction, rerouting, or alteration of a driveway nor construction 
of a highway access onto a town highway may commence until all of the following 
conditions are met: 

       1.  The Town Driveway and Highway Access plan, is approved by the Town 
Designee. 
       2.  A Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit is issued by the Town Designee. 
       3.  When applicable, any other necessary approvals are obtained from Washburn 

County or the State of Wisconsin. 
4.  The Town Board shall, when applicable, seek review and comment from the local 

fire chief, or his deputies, regarding the proposed driveway and whether such 
driveway will allow for adequate and timely emergency vehicle access and other 
equipment access to buildings and structures within the premises. 

E. The preparation of a Town Driveway and Highway Access plan does not guarantee 
the town's approval of a Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit. 

F. After the driveway has been completed, the Town Designee shall inspect the driveway 
prior to issuance of an occupancy permit to determine if it was constructed according to 
the plans and is consistent with the requirements of this ordinance. 

G. As a condition of the Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit, the driveway and 
highway access shall be constructed and maintained by the owner or occupant to 
ensure safe, timely, and proper access and travel by emergency vehicles or other 
service vehicles. 

H. The approval of a Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit application by the 
Town Designee does not constitute a determination that the driveway is safe, suitable 
for use or otherwise passable for vehicles of the general public or emergency vehicles, 
that public access and travel is authorized, or that the applicant is in compliance with 
this Ordinance. The Town Designee may require issuance of an occupancy permit prior 



 6 

to any determination by the Town Designee that the driveway is fit for timely and safe 
travel by vehicles of the general public and emergency vehicles and that such travel is 
authorized. No person may rely on the issuance of a permit to determine that a 
driveway, bridge, culvert, or highway access location is fit or safe for any purpose or 
that they are in compliance with the ordinance or any State or County laws or 
ordinance. 

I. The approval of the Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit application does 
not establish future approval of any driveway as a public road in the Town. 

J. The existence of a parcel of land by Certified Survey Map or Plat does not ensure or 
establish future approval of any driveway permit in the Town. 

 
SECTION 9 – SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Driveway specifications: Driveways and private roads not meeting the current standards 
will be subject to enforcement action. 
       • Drainage - Driveways setting on ground higher than main roadway shall not drain 
water into main road. 
 Driveways must be crowned at the centerline to drain water into driveway ditches. 
The driveway road elevation 10 feet from main road edge intersection must be 6 inches 
lower than main road shoulder, 
       • Driveways longer than 100 feet must provide an adequate turnaround area that will 
accommodate a 30 foot long fire truck. Refer to the diagrams below for driveway and 
turnaround dimensions: 

 
 
Culvert Pipe Placement: Road and driveway culverts shall be placed such that the pipe 
inlet and outlet is set 8 inches or more above the average ditch bottom elevation (based 
upon 20' from each end of culvert). This allows ponding of water in ditches and reduces 
channelized flows. The Town Designee may approve variances to this ordinance due to 
site condition hardships on a case by case basis prior to driveway construction. 
 
(Objective: The protection of ground water and surface water) 
Water Quality depends on natural water infiltration into the soil. Storm water runoff from 
developed impervious surfaces contains many pollutants. These pollutants should not be 
carried directly to water bodies by means of fast moving, channelized flow. Fast, 



 7 

channelized flows will also increase flooding problems and downstream erosion. The goal 
is to pond water and allow it to naturally infiltrate into the soil. 
 

 
SECTION 10 - PENALTY PROVISION 
 
Any person, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity that fails to comply with the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, pay a forfeiture of not less than $10 or 
more than $100, plus the applicable surcharges, assessments, and costs for each 
violation. Each day a violation exists or continues shall be considered a separate offense 
under this Ordinance. In addition, the Town Board may seek injunctive relief from a Court 
of record to enjoin further violations. The violator must also restore the site disturbance 
back to its original condition prior to the violation. 
 
SECTION 11 - SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 
If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is held 
invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of this ordinance that 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end, the 
provisions of this ordinance are severable. 
 
SECTION 12- EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This ordinance shall be effective August    , 2021, upon passage and posting/publication 
as provided by law. 
 
Passed on the   th day of August, 2021 
by the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake. 
             
             
              
     ________________________________________ 
       LeRoy Sandridge, Chairman 
 
Attest: ________________________________   
 Debbie Bouma, Clerk 










	agenda 8-10-21
	TOWN OF LONG LAKE, WASHBURN COUNTY MONTHLY BOARD MEETING
	Town Hall
	Call to Order by LeRoy Sandridge, Chairman Pledge of Allegiance, Verification of Notices, Roll Call


	finanical report 8-10-21
	LL BOARD MINUTES 7-14-21
	TOWN OF LONG LAKE
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	July 13, 2021                             Town Hall
	CORRESPONDENCE: Correspondence was on the table for Board members to review and will be kept with the clerk’s meeting records.
	Respectfully submitted by
	Debbie Bouma, Town Clerk

	mobile home washburn cty
	Ordinance 2021-1 WORKING EDIT
	Town of Long Lake, Washburn County, WI
	Ordinance #2021-1
	Town Driveway & Highway Access Permit Ordinance
	Repealing and Replacing Ordinance #2017-1
	SECTION 1 - TITLE PURPOSE
	SECTION 2- AUTHORITY
	SECTION 3 - ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE
	SECTION 4 - DEFINITIONS
	SECTION 5 - COVERAGE
	Town Driveway and Highway Access Permit - No person shall:
	SECTION 6 - MINIMUM DESIGN STANDARDS
	SECTION 7 - APPLICATION
	SECTION 8 - PLANS
	SECTION 9 – SPECIFICATIONS
	Culvert Pipe Placement: Road and driveway culverts shall be placed such that the pipe inlet and outlet is set 8 inches or more above the average ditch bottom elevation (based upon 20' from each end of culvert). This allows ponding of water in ditches ...
	Water Quality depends on natural water infiltration into the soil. Storm water runoff from developed impervious surfaces contains many pollutants. These pollutants should not be carried directly to water bodies by means of fast moving, channelized flo...
	SECTION 10 - PENALTY PROVISION
	SECTION 11 - SEVERABILITY CLAUSE
	SECTION 12- EFFECTIVE DATE
	LeRoy Sandridge, Chairman
	Attest: ________________________________
	Debbie Bouma, Clerk

	Trial Balance 8-6-21
	VARIANCE REQUEST GOODMAN
	ZONING REQUEST CRAIG SOLOMAN

